
KITTERY PORT AUTHORITY 
 

         APPROVED MINUTES 
         March 4, 2010 
         Council Chambers 
         7:00 P.M. – 7:59 P.M. 
 
Members Present:  John Carson, Chairman, William Bailey, Barry Bush, Kelly Philbrook, Joan 
Castellano, Russell White representing the Planning Board and Harbormaster Bion Pike. 
 
 
1.  Minutes of Meeting: February 4, 2010: 
 
Mr. Bailey moved to approve the minutes of February 4, 2010, seconded by Ms. Philbrook with 
all in favor. 
 
2.  Budget Report: 
 
Ms. Castellano stated that the only item paid out of the budget that month was the electricity bill.  
She noted that she had not seen the budget report prior to that evening and there was a cost of 
$2,471.35 out of buildings, maintenance and grounds and she did not know what it was for.  
Harbormaster Pike stated that he would put the budget for the Port Authority in the mailbox so 
that Ms. Castellano would have it before the meeting.  He continued that most of the $2471.35 
was for the launch repair.  Ms. Castellano indicated that the town had auctioned off the boat and 
the money had been received two Fridays prior but the KPA had not seen the money yet.  
Chairman Carson stated that the Town Council had to approve the transfer and it was on the 
agenda for that month.  Ms. Castellano stated that the insurance was an ongoing issue.  Mr. Bush 
indicated he had spoken with his insurance broker who indicated he was willing to look at the 
KPA’s policies and give them some guidance.  Ms. Castellano noted she had not heard back 
from Town Manager Carter as to whether the municipal part of the KPA had to pay the Jones 
Act part of the policy.  Chairman Carson stated that he had spoken with Town Manager Carter 
who stated that issue was up in the air.  He continued that he indicated to Town Manager Carter 
that the KPA was going to get bids from other insurance companies but they would not make a 
move until the fall when Town Manager Carter received a bid for the entire town in November.  
Chairman Carson stated the KPA might not resolve this issue until the fall and noted that he 
thought that they were overpaying.  Ms. Castellano noted that her concern was the KPA policy 
ended June 30th.  Chairman Carson stated that was a good point and they might need to pursue it 
before the fall.  Chairman Carson indicated that he put copies of the proposed 2011 budget, both 
revenue and expense, in the members’ packets.  He noted this was the requested budget and did 
not know what they would get and did not know if they would spend everything that they asked 
for.  He continued this was early information and was not final.   
 

3. Harbor Master Segment 
4.  

 1



Harbormaster Pike stated relative to the Traip float, he had sent an application for a permit to the 
Army Corps for the additional float and suspected they would have word back by the April 
meeting. 
 
Harbormaster Pike indicated the electrical panel at the Government Street pier was very rusty 
and was something that would be of concern in the near future. 
 
Harbormaster Pike noted relative to mooring renewals, as of 4:30 P.M. that evening they were up 
to $18,434 for mooring renewals with 214 renewed and they had collected $915.00 for dinghy 
fees and the Harbormaster’s Office had collected nearly $4,300.00 in excise tax.   
 
Harbormaster Pike stated the previous evening he had gone to UNH at the request of the 
engineering students who had some questions about the project to clarify whether they were 
thinking and looking in the right direction relative to the process.  He reported he had a very 
productive meeting for about an hour and the students were moving forward and expecting to 
make their presentation in May to the Town Council and to the Port Authority. 
 
Harbormaster Pike noted the UNH marketing survey was ongoing and the KPA members should 
have received the survey via email and the students were looking for some response.  
 
Harbormaster Pike indicated they were going to speak with the Economic Development group 
about getting some money for the Pepperrell Cove project.  He continued this had come from the 
presentation that Chairman Carson, Town Manager Carter and himself had made to Sen. 
Pingree’s group.   
 
Harbormaster Pike stated relative to the Harbormaster phone, he had decided to get the TracFone 
from Walmart and he was going to get a check from the town the following week for it.  He 
noted that it was going to be $45.00 a month which would save the KPA about $80.00 a month.  
Harbormaster Pike indicated that it was going to cost $175.00 to break the contract with Nextel. 
 
Harbormaster Pike stated that he had a call into Waste Management to take the dumpster away at 
Frisbee’s Market.  Chairman Carson asked Harbormaster Pike if he had informed the Frisbees.  
Harbormaster Pike replied that he had been unable to make contact with the office person at the 
market.  Chairman Carson indicated that he would prepare a letter to the Frisbees indicating the 
dumpsters were going to be taken away. 
 
Harbormaster Pike noted the life ring enclosure with a life ring and 60 feet of line would be 
$220.00 for the least expensive one that he had found and it would be adequate for what the KPA 
was looking for.   
 
Harbormaster Pike indicated it might be a good project for him and the assistant harbormasters to 
try to catalogue and start a database of all the piers in Kittery.  Chairman Carson asked what the 
purpose of doing that would be. Harbormaster Pike responded that it would be good for the 
KPA’s records and would contain the owner’s information and specs for the pier.  Chairman 
Carson stated that he thought it was a good idea but it was a low priority project and they should 
think about it.   

 2



 
Harbormaster Pike stated that he had gotten a request from the American Lighthouse Group who 
are doing a restoration and they were requesting a mooring on the backside of the lighthouse so 
they would have a mooring for their boat when they went out to do work.  Mr. Bailey asked if a 
outhaul would be more helpful to them.  Harbormaster Pike replied that he had suggested that to 
them and they might be satisfied with that. Chairman Carson stated that they should think about 
it and he was concerned about the KPA’s liability if they were to allow it. Chairman Carson 
asked Harbormaster Pike what his feeling was relative to this issue.  Harbormaster Pike 
responded that he did not think it was a bad idea because they had to keep their boat somewhere. 
 
Harbormaster Pike noted relative to the security cameras at Pepperrell Cove, the town had given 
the KPA $5,000.00 for the cameras and Sgt. Denault had located a system that a couple of other 
departments in the town wanted installed as well.  Harbormaster Pike stated that the system came 
with 4 cameras, LED screen, DVR recorder and CD burner.  Sgt. Denault had suggested they get 
the 4 camera package which was $1,200.00 or the 8 camera package for $1,900.00.  Sgt. Denault 
had also recommended a 25-30 foot pole on the backside of the Harbormaster shack to house the 
cameras.  Chairman Carson asked what the current agreement relative to being able to report to 
the police department.  Harbormaster Pike replied that Sgt. Denault had suggested that it would 
be possible.  Harbormaster Pike indicated that the cameras were also nightvision cameras.  
Harbormaster Pike stated that the cameras would record for 30 days and then it would start to 
record over itself. Mr. White asked if there had been any incidents in the past where the camera 
system might have helped.  Harbormaster Pike replied that 6 inflatable dinghies with outboards 
had been lost the previous summer.  Harbormaster Pike indicated that the cameras would give 
perfect detail at the farthest part of the docks.  Chairman Carson asked if it would be useful out 
in the mooring field.  Harbormaster Pike noted that Sgt. Denault had indicated the cameras 
would be able to view some parts of the anchorage. Mr. Bailey stated that he was opposed to 
installing the security system as he thought it was taking it too far. Harbormaster Pike stated that 
the motivation for the security system had come from requests from the boaters and would like to 
do this for the boaters. 
 
Mr. Bush moved that the Kittery Port Authority purchase a camera system for installation, 
seconded by Mr. Bailey.  A roll call vote was taken with Mr. Bailey opposed.  Motion passes 
5/1. 
 
Harbormaster Pike stated Mr. Merrill had approached him about gridding the mooring field and 
wanted to make a presentation to the Port Authority for the services he could offer.  Chairman 
Carson gave Harbormaster Pike permission to invite Mr. Merrill to one of the next two meetings 
to do a presentation. 
 
Harbormaster Pike indicated that over the next two years the police radio will no longer be a 
viable unit.  He continued the FCC was narrowing the bandwidth fire, police and emergency 
departments could use and consequently many of the radios have to be changed.  Harbormaster 
Pike noted that in the next two years the Port Authority would have to get a radio that complies 
with FCC regulations.   
 
4. Marinas, Piers and Floats: 

 3



 4

 
There were no applications. 
 
5.  Public Comments and Issues 
 
Milton Hall came to the podium noted that they should ask the insurance company if the rate will 
go down when the security system is installed at Pepperrell Cove.  Mr. Hall stated that he had 
some issues with the Shoreland Zoning ordinance that was in the process of being enacted and 
stated the sections that he was concerned with.  Chairman Carson stated that he had started a 
dialogue with the Town Planner on some of the issues mentioned and stated that he would like 
Mr. Hall’s list as it would be useful. 
 
6.  Correspondence to/from Chairman: 
 
Chairman Carson indicated that at the last workshop to look at the budget, Councilor Beers, as a 
member of the CIP Committee, had proposed central capital budget planning and management.  
Chairman Carson continued that a lot of other things were involved and his reaction to the 
presentation was some of the items proposed would have to go to the legislature to change.  He 
continued that Councilor Beers had asked to speak with the Port Authority and thought they 
should invite him to the April meeting. 
 
Chairman Carson stated on March 8th the marketing study interim report would be presented at 
UNH and he planned on attending.  He continued that his feeling on the study was even though it 
was funded partially by the town, it should be presented to the KPA ahead of time or should be a 
joint presentation with the Town Council and he would speak with Town Manager Carter about 
the issue. 
 
Chairman Carson noted the Portsmouth Yacht Club was concerned that they might not be able to 
charge rental fees for their moorings.  He continued that he had informed the Club that they 
probably would not be able to charge and if there was a way they could use the moorings in 
some other way for a fee, it would not be determined until after they talked to the Army Corps of 
Engineers.   
 
7. Board Members New and Old Business: 
 
Chairman Carson asked if Harbormaster Pike had received any feedback from the workshop on 
the Harbormaster Code of Ethics.  Harbormaster Pike responded he had received some very 
helpful feedback and he was going to finish and re-present the plan.  Chairman Carson indicated 
over the next couple of months he would like to develop a mission statement for the Port 
Authority. 
 
8. Adjournment: 
 
Motion made by Mr. Bush to adjourn, seconded by Mr. White.  6/0, all in favor. 7:59 P.M. 
 
 


